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STATE OF MAINE REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS
RFP SUBMITTED QUESTIONS & ANSWERS SUMMARY
	RFP NUMBER AND TITLE:
	RFP# 202401004, Statewide or Regional Delivery Service of Library Materials

	RFP ISSUED BY:
	Maine State Library

	SUBMITTED QUESTIONS DUE DATE:
	April 3, 2024, no later than 11:59 p.m., local time

	QUESTION & ANSWER SUMMARY ISSUED:
	April 5, 2024

	PROPOSAL DUE DATE:
	April 15, 2024, no later than 11:59 p.m., local time

	PROPOSALS DUE TO:
	Proposals@maine.gov


Provided below are submitted written questions received and the Department’s answer.
	1
	RFP Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	N/A
	Who is/are the current provider(s) for this opportunity?
How many contractors are operating the current RFP?

Who is/are the incumbent contractors?

	
	Answer

	
	Freedom Xpress, Inc. is the only current service provider.


	2
	RFP Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	N/A
	What current pain points are the library locations facing that we should be made aware of?

	
	Answer

	
	Several pain points have been addressed in this RFP, including: 
1. Currently library codes are changed when vendor routes are changed. Per this RFP, fixed codes will be required for each participating library.

2. For the Department, there is currently no means to track actual delivery volume. Per this RFP, tracking mechanisms will be required of both participating libraries and the vendor.

3. For this service, there has never been a requirement of a Memorandum of Agreement between participating libraries and the Department. In order to set clear expectations and communication, the Department is requiring this signed Agreement be on file prior to the start of FY25 service.

4. For past contract periods, participating libraries were allowed to add or subtract delivery days at any time. In order to accurately budget for service, the Department will allow changes by participating libraries only twice per year.


	3
	RFP Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	N/A
	What is the current annual budget for this workflow?
What is the current annual cost of the existing contract(s)?

	
	Answer

	
	For state FY24, the contracted budget is not to exceed $540,000.000. Bidders should propose their most competitive pricing.


	4
	RFP Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	B-6(a-d), Page 9-10
	Are you able to provide pictures of the bag, totes, and labels?

	
	Answer

	
	Yes, please see the following four photos:

[image: image1.emf]VanDeliveryBagsMSL. jpg


Various bag sizes for ILL materials
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Label on delivery bag for ILL van delivery service
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Interior of tote for van delivery
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Van delivery tote exterior




	5
	RFP Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	N/A
	What is the intent of releasing the RFP (i.e. end of current contract, unhappy with service, etc.)?

	
	Answer

	
	The current contract is ending and the timeframe has expired; per State procurement guidelines a new RFP must be issued.


	6
	RFP Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	N/A
	Are you able to provide more detailed information on volume per location? Looking to see details on what to expect at each location.
I see data regarding how many days per week we go to each library, and on the Google map I see the ILL volume for 2022, but what is the unit of measure for this volume, and is that information available on a spreadsheet or other document? For example, the “Very Low”  volume states 5-99 for the year; is that individual books? Zippered bags? Or totes? This volume information is important so that we can accurately assess the vehicle size/type requirements. We need to know the average number of totes per library.
What is the estimated volume for smaller libraries?


	
	Answer

	
	Volume per location for public libraries can be generally ascertained by using both the embedded “Libraries by Regions” Excel spreadsheet in Appendix F of the RFP, and the self-reported annual ILL volume by each public library in the FY22 Public Library Data Survey (Maine). The current vendor does not provide statistics regarding the number of library materials transported, and other participating libraries (besides public) have not been asked to provide volume of ILL materials sent or received. This will be a requirement for both the vendor and all participating libraries going forward beginning in state FY25 on 7/1/2024.



	7
	RFP Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	N/A
	Will there be any fuel surcharges included as part of this bid process?
In addition to the per stop rate, does the State of Maine accept a standard fuel surcharge matrix to protect both parties as fuel prices fluctuate?

	
	Answer

	
	Bidders should include fuel surcharges in their bid proposal if that is desired by the vendor.


	8
	RFP Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	N/A (vendor); Part I, section A
	As the current Vendor, the piece count in this bid is written as 1mm; it is over 1.5mm. Will this be corrected in the bid process or has volume dropped?

	
	Answer

	
	MSL did not define “piece count” in the RFP; “library materials” was defined in the definitions table. The reference to “over 1 million library materials” in the introduction was determined using data from the Maine’s FY22 Public Library Data Survey (only taking data from participating public libraries on the van service during that time period) because the current vendor has not been required to provide statistics on the volume of materials transported for participating libraries of all types. That is an area that does need to be documented by both participating libraries of all types and the vendor in the next contract created through this RFP process.


	9
	RFP Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	Pg 4, RFP Terms/Acronyms with Definitions;
E, Page 5-8
	To confirm, as outlined in the definitions section, is it correct that each library will need their own account set up, and to be invoiced individually? If that is correct, how does the State of Maine assist in the collection of payment for past due invoices from individual libraries?
It is understood that the contractor will submit 3 different weekly invoices: URSUS, CBB and Maine State Library Group: Is this correct?

	
	Answer

	
	Weekly invoices should be sent to the following entities based on the information on page 13, section E, delivery billing, numbers 5, 6, and 7: 
5. The Department will coordinate billing with the majority of participating libraries in the Maine State Library group (see Appendix F for a list of these libraries). The Awarded Bidder will invoice the Department for these libraries weekly by route. Each invoice must clearly be for each route with individual library costs listed.
6. For the libraries in the URSUS consortium (see Appendix F for a list of these libraries), the Awarded Bidder will aggregate the charges and University of Maine – Orono, Folger Library, weekly.
7. The Awarded Bidder will invoice the Colby, Bates, and Bowdoin College libraries separately, weekly.


	10
	RFP Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	Pg 12, E, 1-8
	The RPF asks for a flat rate per stop, however, libraries that receive 2 totes vs 14 totes should be billed differently. We typically bill a flat rate per stop, plus an additional per-tote fee for locations that have heavier volumes. Are we able to include this billing structure in our proposal? For example, Rate1 which includes up to five totes, plus an additional Rate2 for each tote above and beyond the initial five.

	
	Answer

	
	As it states on Page 12, Section E (Delivery Billing), number 1 -3 :
1. Currently, libraries are billed per stop. Bidders may propose new or more efficient methods of billing;

2. The majority of libraries will be billed according to a standard rate. 
3. For libraries that lie outside of the majority of routes, Awarded Bidder may charge more per stop. Bidders must specifically define and justify these rural routes, based upon mileage from their sorting facility OR based upon mileage from the nearest library. (Example: Everytown Library is X miles from a sorting location/van storage, OR deviates X miles from standard rate routes.)


	11
	RFP Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	Pg 8, Part II, A. Overview
	Are certain locations able to be swapped between regions? For example, the locations in/near Fryberg would better fit into the Region 1 network, but they are listed as a part of Region 2.

	
	Answer

	
	As it states on page 8, Part II, A. Overview, “Bidders may offer variations on these regional boundaries.”


	12
	RFP Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	Terms, Pages 4&5
	Totes & Delivery Bags: It is understood that the State will provide these: Is this correct?

	
	Answer

	
	Yes.


	13
	RFP Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	A, Page 6
	“Over 1 million library materials travel through the current service each year”: Does this number reflect the total number of items transported both ways (ie out from the lending library to the receiving library and then back again to the original lending library) or just one way (just from the lending library out to the receiving library)? 

	
	Answer

	
	An item that is transported through the service is counted once by the software used by the libraries and also reported once on the annual Public Library Data Service. So yes, those figures reflect items transported both ways.


	14
	RFP Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	A, Page 8
	“Larger libraries have significant volume on any given day.” Which libraries are considered larger libraries?

	
	Answer

	
	Libraries that have 4 – 5 deliveries per week are considered larger libraries under the current contract.


	16
	RFP Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	J, Page 14
	What is the expected turnaround time for library materials from pickup to final delivery? How is this calculated for 1 x, 2 x, 3 x, 4 x, 5 x week pickups?

	
	Answer

	
	The expected turnaround time for library materials from pick up to final delivery is generally:
For 4x and 5x per week libraries: within 2 business days

For 3x per week libraries: within 3 business days

For 1x and 2x per week libraries: within 5 business days

Currently this is not a tracked datapoint by the vendor or the participating libraries; the Department would like to conduct sampling during FY25 to determine the range of turnaround times, which would be shared with the vendor to assist with growing efficiencies in sorting, storage, and transfer of materials. These expectations will be tempered due to weather conditions.


	17
	RFP Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	B, Page 7
	Are any office, cleaning, construction / other supplies to be transported in this contract? If so, what are the weights and frequency of delivery of these items?

	
	Answer

	
	No those items listed in the question are not transported under this contract.


	19
	RFP Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	2a, Page 11
	Locations receiving one day per week service will not receive pickups / deliveries on Mondays. Are there any other restrictions on what days the Libraries are serviced?

	
	Answer

	
	There is no expectation of service for any library on Saturdays or Sundays, as well as state/federal holidays.


	20
	RFP Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	2d, Page 11
	“School and academic libraries: Deliveries to school libraries and many academic libraries are not made during the long summer break, as well as winter and spring holiday breaks of one or more weeks.” Can information be provided on how many days per year each Library is serviced, or how many days per year each library is closed / does not receive deliveries due to holiday breaks? – This is important to create accurate costings and provide subsequent pricing.

	
	Answer

	
	On average, most school and academic libraries receive 38 weeks of delivery per year. There are slight annual variations among the institutional calendars


	21
	RFP Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	J, Service expectations, f & g, Page 15
	It is our understanding that any missed stops not relating to weather or holidays will incur the 25% administrative fee, is this correct?

	
	Answer

	
	Yes.


	22
	RFP Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	II.5, Page 20
	“Bidders must provide the following information for each of the past three tax years: a. Balance Sheets b. Income (Profit/Loss) Statements.”: It is understood that these documents, listed as private and confidential, will not be disclosed as a public document. Is this correct?

	
	Answer

	
	Bidders have the ability to mark any portion of their proposal as confidential, proprietary, trade-secret, or other related designation. The State cannot guarantee that those marked portions of the proposal are not released, as they are considered public records per 1 M.R.S. § 401 et seq.


	23
	RFP Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	A, Page 8
	What is the estimated number of weekly on-call pickups?

	
	Answer

	
	In the current FY24 contract, it is rare (a few per year). For the upcoming contract, there are 16 low volume libraries that may move to on call, which would mean 1 or 2 pickups per week.
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